
APPROVED MINUTES 

WASTEWATER PUBLIC FORUM 

CITY OF EAST GRAND FORKS 

MONDAY, MAY 6, 2013 - 7:00 P.M. 
 

Mayor Stauss, Council President Buckalew, Vice-President Leigh, and Council members Vetter, 

Tweten, Olstad, and Grassel were present. 

 

Meeting convened at 7:00 pm. 

 

Staff present:  Karla Anderson, Finance Director; Brad Bail, City Engineer; Greg Boppre, City 

Engineer; Scott Huizenga, City Administrator; Megan Nelson, Executive Assistant; and Jason 

Stordahl, Public Works Director. 

 

Council President Buckalew started the meeting at 7:00 pm and asked Mr. Boppre to proceed. 

Mr. Boppre introduced Mark Hallan who is a waste water expert and works for Widseth, Smith, 

Nolting.  He told the council this was the person who had prepared the mechanical facility plan 

that was proposed at the last waste water public forum.  Mr. Boppre then gave a brief over of the 

information covered at the last meeting.  This overview included a timeline of events including 

receiving the Alleged Violation Letter, the city sending in the response, and receiving the 

acceptance letter from the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) agreeing with the city’s 

plan to move forward with a plan of upgrading the waste water facility. 

 

Mr. Boppre continued with an overview of the three different options the council had been 

presented with as ways to upgrade for future treatment of waste water.  He continued by 

discussing cost estimates of the reconstruction of the ponds, a mechanical plant, and the 

interconnect with Grand Forks at both 20 and 30 year debt service without and with additional 

costs if the ponds had to be decommissioned.  Mr. Bail also reminded the council that the MPCA 

was looking at leaking, rip/rap, valves, and capacity and by changing or altering the pond 

structure itself would result into an upgrade of the facility.  He told the council that they looked 

into the mechanical plant resulting in a by-product of struvite, but at this time this is not cost 

effective for the city to move forward with.   

 

Mr. Boppre and Mr. Bail explained a different option of drilling underneath the liner of the 

ponds at 5 foot intervals and utilizing bentonite in the treatment process.  They gave an estimate 

of $3.00 per foot or roughly 9 million dollars for this project.  They also reminded the council 

that any changes or modifications made would result in the city to be in compliance with the 

current standards. 

 

Council member Grassel asked how it would be determined to decommission the ponds or if 

they could stay.  Mr. Boppre explained how testing would need to be done in order to make that 

determination and how testing was completed two years ago with help from Grand Forks.  At 

that time those results were in the range of not having to decommission the ponds.  Mr. Boppre 

added that once a project is picked they will be able to re-test the sludge.  Mr. Bail said Jorja 

DuFresne, also known as the sludge queen, is the person at MPCA who would make that 

determination if the ponds would have to be decommissioned based on samples that would have 



to be taken as the project progressed.  Council member Grassel asked if the city would be able to 

have a determination now or at least sooner so the council would know how much this project is 

going to cost.  Mr. Hallan informed the council that since this is domestic waste there really 

shouldn’t be too much change in the sludge since the last time it was tested.      

 

Council member Olstad asked if the ponds were decommissioned, how long the city would have 

to wait to turn this into agricultural land.  Mr. Boppre informed the council that in 2011 he was 

told it was three years after the ponds have been decommissioned but the MPCA has possibly 

changed that so the city might not have to wait so long.  Mr. Bail added crops could be planted 

but a certain number of years have to pass before crops could be harvested for human 

consumption.  Council member Olstad also asked if the ponds didn’t have to be 

decommissioned, if the city could sell the land located by the ponds.  Mr. Boppre said it would 

all depend on the test results of the sludge.   

 

Mayor Stauss asked what consists of the $20 million proposed for reconstruction of the ponds.  

Mr. Boppre said that they would have to take out and replace the clay liner with an 18 inch new, 

compacted clay liner, replace rip/rap, and make sure the ponds were in compliance with the 

current standards.  Mayor Stauss stated by the time the city started moving along with a project 

the MPCA should have decided what the new level the phosphorus limit will be.   

 

Mr. Boppre told the council the staff has presented the different options and given the council the 

information they had asked for about the options.  He just asked if the council could start to 

narrow down to one option since there will be many things to decide within that one option.  He 

continued by saying staff is there to help create a solution and this way it will be easier to move 

forward, especially when asking the state for help with funding a specific project instead of 

listing options.  Mayor Stauss stated that the council needs to get all the facts before they can 

move ahead.  They need to get as much advice as possible, take the time to process the 

information, and then make an informed decision. 

 

Council member Olstad asked if the council decided to move ahead with reconstruction, looking 

at the costs of how much everything would be, is there guessing at how much phosphorus level 

would be taken down or if was guaranteed to be as low as necessary.  Mr. Hallan stated that 

since the new limit level of phosphorus is unknown but one way of to meet the limit would be 

using chemicals.   He stated how other municipalities use chemicals in their ponds as a part of 

their treatment plan. Council member Olstad asked if the limit levels continued to decrease what 

the cost would be to include the chemical in the operation costs.  Mr. Boppre said they had 

already included the cost of a building and boat for administering chemicals in the ponds in the 

reconstruction estimates.  Mr. Hallan estimated the cost of chemicals at around $20,000.00 for 

one year.  Mr. Hallan also pointed out that if the city moved forward with this chemical or type 

of tertiary treatment it would result in year round discharging, not just seasonal. 

 

Mr. Boppre told council that if they decided to move forward with the interconnect option they 

would pay for an estimated 6.67% of the treatment costs based on the COSA agreement.  Grand 

Forks would have the ability to look at this agreement every two years or any major modification 

and make changes if needed.   

 



Mayor Stauss said he was told there was only five inches of water lost in the secondary pond 

during the winter months.  He also stated the water coming out of the pipe looked clean and 

asked if it would have been water from the lagoon or ground water.  Mr. Bail told the council 

that the level of the ground water is not high enough to be coming out of the drain tile.  He also 

stated there was an uncontrolled discharge and the MPCA does not all any uncontrolled 

discharges.  Mr. Boppre informed the mayor and council there was fecal matter found in the 

transfer structure and the 55 year old facility needs to be upgraded.   Then he read part of a letter 

describing issues with the ponds written by Mr. Dean Wieland from 1987 showing some of these 

issues haven’t been addressed. 

 

Mayor Stauss told the council Mr. Tininenko told him to get in touch with Mr. Jim Wells which 

he did.  He invited Mr. Wells to this meeting to share his knowledge with the council and asked 

him to speak.  Mr. Wells gave a brief summary of his extensive work in the waste water field.  

He told the council how his has worked mostly with industries, some ponds but mostly 

mechanical treatment plants.  He had a concern about all of the implications of the ponds 

leaking.  He continued by saying he the council needs to be sure of what the water loss is 

everyday by conducting a water balance test that would take around 30 days of testing with some 

time to set the test up.  Mr. Wells said the water loss is more than 500 gallons per acre per day 

but it is a lot less than what it was originally designed for.  Mr. Wells stated he doesn’t 

understand why the MPCA wouldn’t allow the city to maintain our current system as it was 

designed.  He explained to the council how ponds are not like mechanical plants, they won’t 

wear our and they are a very good asset.  Mr. Wells told the council not to rush to a judgment but 

take the time to make an informed decision.     

 

Council President Buckalew asked for comments.  With no response he addressed the council 

and said how the council should follow the advice about narrowing the focus of options.  He 

continued by telling the council the email he had sent out was to get the council thinking about 

things, possibly a little differently, and to help open up discussion.  Council member Buckalew 

said he wasn’t trying to impress any ideas of what project to pick and commented on how many 

things there are to still decide.  He continued by saying how he is open to any of the projects but 

the council needs to pick what will work best for the taxpayers.  He pointed out how there were 

many aspects to this decision including emotional but they still need to be able to move forward 

and make sure the city has room to grow. 

 

Mr. Boppre asked the council again to try and cut the options down to one.  Even with one 

option there are still many things to decide.  He reminded them this choice didn’t have to be 

done in one day or next week but hopefully soon.  Mayor Stauss expressed again how the council 

needs to look at every possible fact, if Mr. Wells would be able to give more advice, and how the 

council should look everywhere to make well informed, correct decision for the community. 

 

Motion to adjourn was made by council member Leigh, seconded by council member Olstad.   

The meeting was adjourned at 7:52 pm. 

 

 

_______________________________________________ 

Karl Lindquist, Interim City Administrator  


